ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 18, 2016

1:33 p.m
VEMBERS PRESENT
Senat or John Coghill, Vice Chair
Senator Ma Costello
Senator Bill W el echowski

Senat or Peter M cciche
MEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Lesil MQuire, Chair
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR SENATE BI LL NO. 91

"An Act relating to crimnal |aw and procedure; relating to
controlled substances; relating to probation; relating to
sentencing; establishing a pretrial services program wth
pretrial services officers in the Departnment of Corrections;
relating to permanent fund dividends; relating to electronic
monitoring; relating to penalties for violations of runicipal
or di nances; relating to parole; relating to correctional

restitution centers; relating to comunity work service;
relating to revocation, term nation, suspension, cancellation,
or restoration of a driver's |icense; relating to the

di squalification of persons convicted of certain felony drug
offenses from participation in the food stanmp and tenporary
assi stance prograns; relating to the duties of the comm ssioner
of corrections; anmending Rules 6, 32, 32.1, 38, 41, and 43,
Al aska Rules of Crimnal Procedure, and repealing Rules 41(d)
and (e), Alaska Rules of Crimnal Procedure; and providing for
an effective date.”

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 91

SHORT TITLE: OWN BUS CRI M LAW & PROCEDURE; CORRECTI ONS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) COGHI LL

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- March 18, 2016



03/ 25/ 15
03/ 25/ 15
04/ 02/ 15
04/ 02/ 15
04/ 02/ 15
02/ 03/ 16
02/ 03/ 16
02/ 13/ 16
02/ 13/ 16
02/ 13/ 16
02/ 18/ 16
02/ 18/ 16
02/ 18/ 16
02/ 25/ 16
02/ 25/ 16
02/ 25/ 16
03/ 01/ 16
03/ 01/ 16
03/ 01/ 16
03/ 03/ 16
03/ 03/ 16
03/ 03/ 16
03/ 08/ 16
03/ 08/ 16
03/ 08/ 16
03/ 08/ 16
03/ 08/ 16
03/ 09/ 16
03/ 09/ 16
03/ 09/ 16
03/ 09/ 16
03/ 09/ 16
03/ 09/ 16

03/ 09/ 16
03/ 09/ 16
03/ 09/ 16
03/ 11/ 16
03/ 11/ 16
03/ 11/ 16
03/ 16/ 16
03/ 16/ 16
03/ 16/ 16

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

W TNESS REG STER

BUTCH MOCRE,

SENATE JUD COW TTEE

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
STA, JUD, FIN

STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( STA)

SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED- REFERRALS
STA, JUD, FIN

STA AT 10: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( STA)

STA AT 8: 30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( STA)

STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( STA)

STA AT 8: 30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( STA)

STA AT 8: 30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( STA)

STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
Moved CSSSSB 91(STA) Qut of Conmmittee
M NUTE( STA)

STA AT 5: 00 PM BUTROVI CH 205

-- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

STA RPT CS 2DP 1DNP 1NR 1AM NEW Tl TLE
DP: COGHI LL, MCGQU RE

DNP: STOLTZE

NR: HUGGA NS

AM W ELECHOWSBKI

JUD WAI VED PUBLI C HEARI NG NOTI CE, RULE
23

JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( JUD)

JUD AT 2:00 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( JUD)

JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( JUD)

representing hinself

-2- March 18, 2016



Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comment ed and of fered suggestions on SB 91.

JESSI CA BOGARD, representing herself
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to

MELI SSA ORDNER, representing herself
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to

CARA DURR, Food Bank of Al aska
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

SARRA KHLI FI, Al aska Food Bank of Al aska
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

VI CKI WALLNER, Stop Valley Thieves
Pal mer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to

BRI AN SHI MEK, Qutreach Manager

Food Bank of Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

REECE BURKE, representing hinself
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

LECON CHUI TT, Jr., representing hinself
| oni c, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

MARI MJKAI, Food Bank of Al aska
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

KARA NELSQON, Di rector, Raven House and Re-

Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

VAL DEWEY, representing herself

Fai r banks, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3-

SB 91.

SB 91.

91.

91.

SB 91.

91.

91.

91.

91.

entry Coalition,

91.

91.

March 18, 2016



DONNA BALDW N, representing hersel f
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 91.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:33:21 PM

VICE CHAIR COGHILL <called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:33 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Costello, Welechowski, and Vice Chair
Coghi I I .

SB 91- OWI BUS CRI M LAW & PROCEDURE; CORRECTI ONS

1: 33: 59 PM
VICE CHAIR COGHI LL announced the consideration of SSSB 91 and
opened public testinony.

1:34: 17 PM
BUTCH MOORE, representing hinself, introduced hinself as Bree
Moore's father. He thanked the sponsor for taking suggestions

from many agencies and including anendnents to the bill. He
noted a letter he had witten to the commttee about an
anmendnent that adds paragraphs throughout the bill to exenpt

uncl assified felonies - the nost egregi ous crines.

He referred to the Pew Charitable Trust recommendations that the
bill take the pressure off the prison system make penalties for
the nost violent crinmes stiffer, and reinvest in prevention and
integrating people back into society upon release. He read the
par agraph that would exenpt certain parole categories: "If the
def endant has not been convicted of an unclassified felony, a
sexual felony as defined by statute, or a crine involving
donmestic violence as defined by statute.” He said he found one
additional section to add that paragraph on page 55, line 31. He
did not think probation officers should be forced to reconmend
probation for unclassified fel onies.

He said he discussed with M. Schilling the provision that
states the m ni mum anount of tine served for rape if a weapon is
used is 25 years. A judge can inpose a mninum of 35 years
dependi ng on violence and other factors. He pointed out that the
mnimum for nurder in the second degree is 10 years and for
murder in the first degree it is 20 years. He explained that
those | aws were changed by Representative Mark Neuman and no one
realized that the sentences for rape were |longer than the

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- March 18, 2016



sentences for murder. He said M. Schilling's research on this
i ssue found that nost nurder sentences were from 45 to 55 years
with eligibility for parole after a third of the sentence. He
suggested changing murder in the second degree to a m ni mum of
25 years; for nurder in the first degree it would be 35 years.
He maintained that there would be no additional cost to the
st at e.

1:39:28 PM

He concluded that this would address one of the Pew Charitable
Trust recommendation to stiffen penalties for nurder and the
nost dangerous offenses. He thanked the sponsor for being open
to comuni cation and i nput.

1:41: 09 PM
VICE CHAIR COGHI LL voiced appreciation for M. More' s wrk and
said he would highlight that suggestion.

1:42: 58 PM

JESSI CA BOGARD, representing herself, testified in opposition to
SB 91. She shared the victinls perspective of crine and the need
for bal ance between the victinms pain and the punishment of the
convicted. She said the balance would be thrown aside, should
parts of SB 91 pass, because the convicted will now be rel eased
sooner and parole shortened. However, the victim would continue
to suffer. She concluded that the budget's bottom line should
never conme at such a high cost to the victims piece of mnd.

CHAIR COGHI LL said he has tried his best to think through the
m ni mum sentences. He said he would ensure there is |ess “good
time” available to those who have conmmtted sexual assault. He
understood that it would not erase the pain. He commented that
there would be a risk assessnent tool for probation and parole,
which includes victins' input. He said they are trying to be
sensitive, but also allow for redenption opportunities for the
i ncarcer at ed.

1:46: 41 PM
MELI SSA ORDNER, representing herself, testified in opposition to
SB 91. She requested that the bill not consider the anount of

noney saved, but rather the punishnment for crimes commtted. She
shared her daughter's experience as a victim of sexual abuse.
She spoke of the wong of letting a sex abuser be released too
soon, as provided in the bill. She read a letter her daughter
wote when she was eleven. She stated that the bill puts the
burden on the victim to stay in touch with the Departnent of
Corrections.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- March 18, 2016



1:49:41 PM

CHAIR COGHI LL explained that violent crinmes were not addressed
by the comm ssion; they dealt with msdeneanants. He said her
point is well taken. He thanked her for sharing her story.

1:50: 20 PM

CARA DURR, Food Bank of Al aska, testified in support of SB 91.
She voiced appreciation for the repeal of the lifetinme ban on
the Supplenental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) found in
Section 136. She had concerns about Section 135, which requires
mandatory drug testing for those with a previous felony drug
charge who want to receive public benefits. She said drug felons
must conmply with their parole conditions, which often include
drug treatnment and testing. Putting mandatory drug testing under
the Departnent of Health and Social Services (DHSS) would be
redundant and should be left to the Department of Corrections

It would increase the workload in DHSS and be very costly wth
little return on investnent.

1: 53: 12 PM
CHAIR COGHI LL assured her that Section 135 would continue to
receive scrutiny.

1:53:27 PM

SARRA KHLI FI, Al aska Food Bank of Alaska, testified in support
of SB 91. She echoed concerns nentioned by the previous speaker
about Section 135 and voiced support for Section 136. She
concluded that drug testing is costly and will affect all Al aska
famlies and create another barrier.

CHAI R COCGHI LL suggested she send in her witten testinony.

1:56: 14 PM

VI CKI WALLNER, Stop Valley Thieves, testified in opposition to
SB 91. She was disappointed that the public did not receive
notice of the neeting. She shared the research she has done. She
suggested the sponsor |ook at unintended consequences of SB 91.
She suggested using comobn sense and shared statistics related
to time served (now considered pretrial). She maintained they
all had long records or had commtted serious crines. The
of fenders were back on the street in less than six nonths for
many reasons. She highlighted several cases. She said to give
credit to those who conplete progranms in prison. She requested
getting tough on crinme, slowing the bill hearing procedure down,
and not nmaking rushed legislative decisions. She suggested

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- March 18, 2016



including citizens in the process to provide a nore bal anced
Vi ew.

2:04: 15 PM

CHAI R COGHI LL thanked Ms. Wallner for all the work she has done.
He noted the frustration of the public to have to deal wth
t hi every.

He said he would keep the public notice problem in mnd and

commented on the bail risk assessnment tool found in the bill. He
said there wll also be credit for prograns conpleted and
incentives to participate in prograns. He noted there has been
public involvenent on the bill and the commttee is not rushing

t hrough the bill

2:06: 04 PM
SENATOR M CCI CHE joined the commttee.

2:06:15 PM

BRI AN SHI MEK, CQutreach WManager, Food Bank of Al aska, testified
in support of SB 91. He thanked the sponsor for the work he and
the coomittee have done. He said he is a big fan of Section 136,
but not Section 135. He discussed admi nistrative costs and the
redundancy of the program He gave an exanple of a famly that
had to split their food with the of fender

2:09: 08 PM
CHAIR COGH LL related that it 1is a public issue and an
accountability issue.

2:09:45 PM

REECE BURKE, representing hinself, testified in support of SB
91. He shared his life as a sober, forner incarcerated person
who was nmuch benefitted by the Wellness Court. He described how
hard his life is without the ability to drive a car and the
difficulty of not having a |icense.

CHAIR COGHILL said the bill ainms for public safety and
accountability.

2:12: 34 PM

LECON CHUI TT, Jr., representing hinself, testified in support of
SB 91. He related that he is on parole and a programin Arizona
called the Transitional Living helped him succeed. He said he
has been clean and sober for 18 years. He stated there is a need
for simlar progranms in Al aska.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- March 18, 2016



He spoke of Section 135 regarding drug testing. He said he was
in prison for armed robbery, not drugs. He had trouble finding a
job and being able to get on a SNAP program was very beneficial,
but he did not feel he should be required to have drug testing
because he was not a drug of fender.

He described his current job and how inportant it is to have
support and nmandatory programs in prisons. He said he |earned
how to work in prison. He shared how his village is welcom ng
and how he gives back to his comunity.

2:23:56 PM
CHAIR COGH LL thanked M. Chuitt. He said there are several
provisions in the bill that address his suggestions. He

cormented that people in safety professions have to pass drug
tests and that was the rational e behind Section 135.

2:25: 07 PM

MARI MJUKAI, Food Bank of Al aska, testified in support of SB 91l.
She said she works in the food outreach program and her clients
have simlar stories to M. Mkai’s. It helps when they have
tools to better thenselves. She said she works closely with the
Di vision of Public Assistance and Section 135 would be costly to
t hat agency. She suggested that individuals on parole have done
their time and the provisions in Section 135 would duplicate
their parole requirenents. She thanked the commttee for its
hard work on SB 91.

2:28:10 PM
CHAIR COGHI LL said he would look into the drug testing required
by probation officers.

2:28:36 PM

KARA NELSON, Director, Raven House and Re-entry Coalition,
testified in support of SB 91. She said nobst inmates are in
prison due to addictions and nental health issues. She shared
her personal story. She stressed the inportance of getting rid
of the barrier to those re-entering society. She said there are
sone great progranms in prisons, but sonme individuals are being
held for over a year without the ability to get services. She
said she wanted to ensure that nental health issues are dealt
with. She encouraged the reinvestnent piece and the food stanp
provi sions. She wanted to enpower prisoners to becone thriving
menbers of society.

2:33:40 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- March 18, 2016



VAL DEWVEY, representing herself, testified in support of SB 91.
She shared the story of her son’s history of incarceration and
mental health issues. She said 40 percent of those incarcerated
have nmental health problens. She enphasized how costly it is and
the I ack of progranms and housing for the nentally ill.

2:38:45 PM
CHAIR COGHI LL agreed it was a slow and tedious process and he
agreed that corrections and behavioral health 1issues are
connect ed.

2:39: 30 PM

DONNA BALDW N, representing herself, testified in support of SB
91. She said she is a recovery coach and supports famlies of
addi cts. She wanted to see nore support for famlies.

2:41: 33 PM
CHAIR COGHI LL kept public testinmony open and held SB 91 in
conmttee. He listed topics to be heard at the next neeting.

2:43: 49 PM
There being no further business to cone before the conmttee
Vice Chair Coghill adjourned the Senate Judiciary Standing

Commttee at 2:43 p. m

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -9- March 18, 2016



